THE FALL

Discography

Compiled by **Jeff Higgott**

© J Higgott 1999

March 1999 Page 1 of 43 Jeff Higgott

The Tun Discography Issue 1.5

March 1999 Page 2 of 43 Jeff Higgott

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION		5
1.	THE SINGLES	7
2.	THE ALBUMS	13
	Live At The Witch Trials	13
	Dragnet	13
	Totale's Turns (It's Now Or Never)	13
	Grotesque (After The Gramme)	14
	Slates etc	14
	77-Early Years-79	14
	Hex Enduction Hour	15
	Room to Live (Undiluteable Slang Truth)	15
	A Part Of America Therein, 1981	15
	Perverted By Language	16
	In a Hole	16
	The Wonderful and Frightening World of	17
	Hip Priest and Kamerads	17
	This Nation's Saving Grace	18
	Nord-West Gas	18
	Bend Sinister in: Palace of Swords Reversed	18
		19
	The Frenz Experiment I am Kurious, Oranj	19 20
	Seminal Live	20 20
	Extricate	20 21
	458489 A Sides	21
	458489 B Sides	22
	Shift-Work	22
	Code: Selfish	23
	The Collection	23
	The Infotainment Scan	23
	BBC Radio 1 'Live In Concert'	24
	Middle Class Revolt	24
	Cerebral Caustic	24
	The Twenty Seven Points	25
	The Legendary Chaos Tape	25
	Sinister Waltz	26
	Fiend With a Violin	26
	Oswald Defence Lawyer	26
	The Other Side Of The Fall	27
	The Light User Syndrome	27
	The Fall In The City	27
	Archive Series - The Fall	28
	The More You Seek The Less You Find	29
	15 Ways To Leave Your Man	30
	Levitate	30
	Oxymoron	31
	Cheetham Hill	31
	SmileIt's The Best Of	31
	Live To Air In Melbourne '82	32
	Northern Attitude	32

March 1999 Page 3 of 43 Jeff Higgott

33
33
33
34
34
35
35
36
42
44

March 1999 Page 4 of 43 Jeff Higgott

Ine I an Discography issue /.3

INTRODUCTION

"Jeff," wrote John Peel in the sleeve notes to *The Light User Syndrome*, "has produced an authoritative Fall discography". Well this is it!

Included herein are the details of the music of one of Britain's most prolific bands. The discography aims to document all of **The Fall**'s material, released on vinyl, compact disc, audio cassette and video cassette from the band's conception through to the present day. Books dedicated to The Fall are given a (necessarily small) section at the end.

Only UK releases and essential imports of **The Fall** material are included. To attempt to document the whole world's releases would reveal a few differing record labels, release dates and track listings whilst not (so far as I'm aware) throwing up any tracks unavailable in Britain.

Whilst every effort has been made to ensure accuracy and completeness of the discography I'm only human!

Acknowledgements

I would like to thank the following people for their assistance in the compilation and distribution of this discography: Stefan Cooke, John Coryell, S. C. Dean, J. R. Ellis, Mike Higgott, Mike Jones, Philip Katz, Richard Kidd, Alan McBride, Ed Lowe, Chris Mohr, John Peel, Chris Rouch, Steve Scott, Tommi Turkia, Rob Waite, Timothy Wesley, Gez Wood and anyone else who has offered constructive comments.

Finally, thanks to Mark E. Smith and past and present members of **The Fall** for making the discography possible in the first place.

Jeff Higgott July 1998.

March 1999 Page 5 of 43 Jeff Higgott

The Tun Discography Issue 1.5

March 1999 Page 6 of 43 Jeff Higgott

1. THE SINGLES

Bingo-masters Breakout/Psycho Mafia/Repetition Step Forward SF7 August 1978 (7")

It's the New Thing/Various Times Step Forward SF9 November 1978 (7")

Rowche Rumble/In My Area Step Forward SF11 July 1979 (7")

Fiery Jack/2nd Dark Age/Psykick Dancehall 2 Step Forward SF13 January 1980 (7")

How I Wrote `Elastic Man'/City Hobgoblins Rough Trade RT048 July 1980 (7")

Totally Wired/Putta Block
Rough Trade RT056 September 1980 (7")

Lie Dream of a Casino Soul/Fantastic Life Kamera ERA001 November 1981 (7")

Look, Know/I'm Into CB
Kamera ERA004 April 1982 (7")

Marquis Cha-Cha/Room to Live

Kamera ERA014 October 1982 (7")

(a few initial copies were labelled Papal Visit on B-side)

The Man Whose Head Expanded/Ludd Gang Rough Trade RT133 June 1983 (7")

Kicker Conspiracy/Wings Container Drivers/New Puritan Rough Trade RT143 October 1983 (double 7")

Oh! Brother/God-Box
Beggars Banquet Beg110 8 June 1984 (7")

Oh! Brother/O! Brother/God-Box
Beggars Banquet Beg110T 8 June 1984 (12")

c.r.e.e.p/Pat-Trip Dispenser

Beggars Banquet Beg116 24 August 1984 (7")

C.R.E.E.P/Pat-Trip Dispenser/c.r.e.e.p.

Beggars Banquet Beg116T 24 August 1984 (12")

(The first pressings were on green vinyl - the rest were on black with a free art print)

March 1999 Page 7 of 43 Jeff Higgott

THE TAIL DISCOGRAPHY ISSUE 1.3

Call For Escape Route
Draygo's Guilt/Clear Off/No Bulbs
Beggars Banquet BEG120E 12 October 1984 (12")
No Bulbs 3/Slang King 2
Beggars Banquet BEG 120 (Bonus 7")

Couldn't Get Ahead/Rollin' Dany Beggars Banquet BEG134 June 1985 (Double A-side 7")

Couldn't Get Ahead/Rollin' Dany/Petty (Thief) Lout Beggars Banquet BEG134T 21 June 1985 (12")

Cruiser's Creek/L.A.

Beggars Banquet BEG150 October 1985 (33rpm 7")

Cruiser's Creek/L.A./Vixen

Beggars Banquet BEG150T 11 October 1985 (12")

Living Too Late/Hot Aftershave Bop/Living Too Long Beggars Banquet BEG165T 7 July 1986 (12")

Living Too Late/Hot Aftershave Bop
Beggars Banquet BEG165 July 1986 (Promotional 7")

Mr. Pharmacist/Lucifer Over Lancashire Beggars Banquet BEG168 1 September 1986 (7")

Mr. Pharmacist/Lucifer Over Lancashire/Auto Tech Pilot Beggars Banquet BEG168T 1 September 1986 (12")

Hey! Luciani/Shoulder Pads #1B Beggars Banquet BEG176 8 December 1986 (7")

Hey! Luciani/Entitled/Shoulder Pads #1B Beggars Banquet BEG176T 8 December 1986 (12")

There's a Ghost In My House/Haf Found Bormann Beggars Banquet BEG187 27 April 1987 (7")

There's a Ghost In My House/Haf Found Bormann
Beggars Banquet BEG187H April 1987 (7" With hologram sleeve)

There's a Ghost In My House/Haf Found Bormann/Sleep Debt Snatches/Mark'll Sink Us Beggars Banquet BEG187T 27 April 1987 (12")

There's a Ghost In My House/Hey! Luciani/Mark'll Sink Us/Sleep Debt Snatches Beggars Banquet BEG187C May 1987 (MC)

Peel Sessions EP
Put Away/Mess of My/No Xmas For John Key/Like To Blow
Strange Fruit SFPS028 June 1987 (12")
(Session recorded 27 November 1978, transmitted 6 December 1978.
Original limited edition came in metalicised sleeve)
Castle SFPS028 1989 (CD)
Reissue with same track listing

March 1999 Page 8 of 43 Jeff Higgott

THE TAIL DISCOGRAPHY ISSUE 1.3

Hit The North Part 1/Hit the North Part 2

Beggars Banquet BEG200 19 October 1987 (7")

Hit The North Part 1/Hit the North Part 3/Australians in Europe/Northerns in Europ *Beggars Banquet BEG200T 26 October 1987 (12")*

Hit the North Part 1/Hit the North Part 2

Beggars Banquet BEG200P October 1987 (7" picture disc)

Hit the North Part 4/Hit the North Part 5/Hit the North Part 1

Beggars Banquet BEG200TR October 1987 (12")

Hit the North (Zeus B. Held Remix)/Hit the North (Extended Version)/Hit the North (Dub Version) Beggars Banquet SOVX2410 1987 (12")

Hit the North Double Six Mix

Hit The North Part 1/Hit The North (Double six mix)/Hit the North Part 4/Australians in Europe Beggars Banquet BEG200C October 1987 (MC)

Victoria/Tuff Life Boogie

Beggars Banquet BEG206 18 January 1988 (7")

Victoria/Tuff Life Boogie

Beggars Banquet BEG206B January 1988 (Boxed numbered 7" + badge + 2 lyric sheets)

Victoria/Tuff Life Boogie/Guest Informant/Twister

Beggars Banquet (12") BEG206T 18 January 1988 (12")

Victoria/Tuff Life Boogie/Guest Informant/Twister

Beggars Banquet BEG206C 18 January 1988 (MC)

Bremen Nacht Run Out/Mark'll Sink Us

Beggars Banquet FALL1 29 February 1988 (7" free with The Frenz Experiment)

Jerusalem/Acid Priest 2088

Beggars Banquet FALL2 (7")

Big New Prinz/Wrong Place, Right Time No. 2

Beggars Banquet FALL3 (7")

 $(Two\ discs\ and\ a\ postcard\ in\ a\ box\ limited\ to\ 15000,\ numbered\ and\ issued\ as\ FALL2B$

November 1988)

Jerusalem/Acid Priest 2088

Beggars Banquet FALL2 (CD)

Big New Prinz/Wrong Place, Right Time No. 2

Beggars Banquet FALL3 (CD)

(Two discs and in a wallet limited to 5000, numbered November 1988)

Big New Prinz/Wrong Place, Right Time

Beggars Banquet FALL4 1988 (Promotional 7")

Big New Prinz/Wrong Place, Right Time

Beggars Banquet FALL4T 1988 (Promotional 12")

Cab it Up/Dead Beat Descendant

Beggars Banquet BEG226 June 1989 (7")

March 1999 Page 9 of 43 Jeff Higgott

Cab it Up/Dead Beat Descendant/Kurious Oranj (live)/Hit the North (live) Beggars Banquet BEG226T 12 June 1989 (12")

Telephone Thing/British People in Hot Weather Cog Sinister SIN4 January 1990 (7")

Telephone Thing (extended)/British People in Hot Weather/Telephone Dub Cog Sinister SINDJ412 January 1990 (Promotional 12")

Telephone Thing (extended)/British People in Hot Weather/Telephone Dub Cog Sinister SIN412 January 1990 (12")

Telephone Thing (extended)/British People in Hot Weather/Telephone Dub Cog Sinister SINCD4 January 1990 (CD)

Telephone Thing/British People in Hot Weather Cog Sinister January 1990 (Promotional MC)

Popcorn Double Feature/Butterflies 4 Brains Cog Sinister SIN5 March 1990 (7")

Popcorn Double Feature/Arms Control Poseur/Butterflies 4 Brains Cog Sinister SIN512 March 1990 (12")

Popcorn Double Feature/Zandra
Cog Sinister SINR5 Mar 1990 (7" limited to 3000 copies)

Popcorn Double Feature/Zandra/Black Monk Theme pt. II Cog Sinister SINR512 March 1990 (12" limited to 3000 copies)

White Lightning/Blood Outta Stone
Cog Sinister?? (Promotional single c/w small bottle of `White Lightnin' Tequila)

White Lightning/Blood Outta Stone Cog Sinister SIN6 13 August 1990 (7")

White Lightning/Zagreb (Movement II)/Blood Outta Stone/The Funeral Mix Cog Sinister SINX612 August 1990 (12")

The Dredger EP

White Lightning/Blood Outta Stone/Zagreb (Movements I + II + III)/Life Just Bounces Cog Sinister SIN612 August 1990 (12" limited to 5000 copies)

White Lightning/Blood Outta Stone/Zagreb (Movements I + II + III)/Life Just Bounces Cog Sinister SINCD6 August 1990 (CD)

High Tension Line/Xmas With Simon Cog Sinister SIN7 December 1990 (7")

High Tension Line/Xmas With Simon/Don't Take the Pizza Cog Sinister SIN712 December 1990 (12")

High Tension Line/Xmas With Simon/Don't Take the Pizza Cog Sinister SIN7(12) December 1990 (Promotional MC)

So What About It?

Cog Sinister NICE1 1991 (Promotional 12" containing four remixes of the song)

March 1999 Page 10 of 43 Jeff Higgott

Free Range/Everything Hurtz

Cog Sinister SINS8 2 March 1992 (7")

Free Range/Everything Hurtz

Cog Sinister SIN8 2 March 1992 (7" Limited edition `hand-painted' sleeve)

Free Range/Return/Dangerous/Everything Hurtz

Cog Sinister SIN812 2 March 1992 (Numbered limited edition 12")

Free Range/Return/Dangerous/Everything Hurtz

Cog Sinister SINCD8 2 March 1992 (CD)

Ed's Babe/Pumpkin Head Xscapes/The Knight the Devil and Death/Free Ranger Fontana/Cog Sinister SINCD912 22 June 1992 (12")

Ed's Babe/Pumpkin Head Xscapes/The Knight the Devil and Death/Free Ranger Fontana/Cog Sinister SINCD9 22 June 1992 (CD)

The Re-Mixer/Lost in Music/A Past Gone Mad/The League of Bald Headed Men *Permanent/Cog Sinister 15 February 1993 (Promotional 12")*

Kimble/C'n'C-Hassle Schmuk

Strange Fruit SFPS787 8 March 1993 (7")

Kimble/C'n'C-Hassle Schmuk/Spoilt Victorian Child/Words of Expectation Strange Fruit SFPS087 8 March 1993 (12")

Kimble/Gut of the Quantifier/Spoilt Victorian Child/Words of Expectation Strange Fruit SFPCD087 8 March 1993 (CD)

Why Are People Grudgeful?/Glam Racket

Permanent/Cog Sinister 7SPERM9 5 April 1993 (7")

Why Are People Grudgeful?/Glam Racket/The Re-Mixer/Lost In Music Permanent/Cog Sinister 12SPERM9 5 April 1993 (12")

Why Are People Grudgeful?/Glam Racket/The Re-Mixer/Lost In Music Permanent/Cog Sinister CDSPERM9 5 April 1993 (CD)

Behind The Counter/War/Cab Driver

Permanent/Cog Sinister 12SPERMD13 13 December 1993 (12")

Behind The Counter/War/Cab Driver

Permanent/Cog Sinister CDSPERMD13 13 December 1993 (CD)

M.5./Happy Holiday/Behind The Counter (Remix)

Permanent/Cog Sinister 12SPERM13 20 December 1993 (12")

M.5./Happy Holiday/Behind The Counter (Remix)

Permanent/Cog Sinister CDSPERM13 20 December 1993 (CD)

15 Ways/Hey! Student/The \$500 Bottle Of Wine

Permanent/Cog Sinister CDSPERM14 18 April 1994 (CD)

15 Ways/Hey! Student/The \$500 Bottle Of Wine

Permanent/Cog Sinister10SPERM14 18 April 1994 (Clear vinyl 10")

March 1999 Page 11 of 43 Jeff Higgott

15 Ways/Hey! Student/The \$500 Bottle Of Wine Permanent/Cog Sinister 12SPERM14 18 April 1994 (12")

The Chiselers/Chilinist

Jet JET 500 12 Feb 1996 (7")

The Chiselers/Chilinist/Interlude/Chilinism Jet JETCD 500 12 Feb 1996 (CD)

The Chiselers/Chilinist/Interlude/Chilinism Jet JETMC 500 12 Feb 1996 (MC)

Masquerade - Mr Natural Mix/Masquerade - PWL Mix/Masquerade - Album Mix Artful 10ARTFUL1 9 February 1998 (10")

Masquerade - Single Mix/Ivanhoes Two Pence/Spencer Must Die Live/Ten Houses of Eve Remix Artful CDARTFUL1 9 February 1998 (CD1)

Masquerade - Single Mix/Calendar/Scareball/Ol' Gang Live Artful CXARTFUL1 9 February 1998 (CD2)

Touch Sensitive Dance Mix/ Touch Sensitive / Antidote Artful 12ARTFUL2 23 February 1999 (12")

Touch Sensitive/Antidote/Touch Sensitive Dance Mix Artful CDARTFUL2 23 February 1999 (CD)

F-'oldin' money/perfect day (new version)/birthday song (new mix) Artful CDARTFUL3 16 August 1999 (CD)

F-'oldin' money/The REAL Life Of The Crying Marshal (new version)/Tom Raggazzi (new mix) Artful CDXARTFUL3 16 August 1999 (CD)

March 1999 Page 12 of 43 Jeff Higgott

issue 1.3 Ine ran Discography

2. THE ALBUMS

Live At The Witch Trials

Step Forward SFLP1 January 1979 (LP)

Frightened

Crap Rap 2/Like to Blow

Rebellious Jukebox

No Xmas for John Quays

Mother - Sister!

Industrial Estate

Underground Medecin

Two Steps Back

Live at the Witch Trials

Futures and Pasts

Music Scene

(CD (SFLPCD1), LP (SFLP1) and MC (SFLPC1) with same track listing released 1989 on IRS records. Second re-release 1997 poor quality, mastered from vinyl)

Dragnet

Step Forward SFLP4 October 1979 (LP)

Psykick Dancehall

A Figure Walks

Printhead

Dice Man

Before the Moon Falls

Your Heart Out

Muzorewi's Daughter

Flat of Angles

Choc-Stock

Spectre vs. Rector

Put Away

(CD (SFLPCD4) with same track listing released 1990 on IRS records. Released again on CD by Cog Sinister (COG113) March 1999)

Totale's Turns (It's Now Or Never)

Rough Trade ROUGH10 May 1980 (live LP)

Intro - Fiery Jack

Rowche Rumble

Muzorewi's Daughter

In my Area

Choc-Stock

Spectre vs. Rector 2

Cary Grant's Wedding

That Man

New Puritan

No Xmas for John Quay

(Reissued on CD (DOJO CD 83) with same track listing released 21 Nov 1992 on DOJO records; Reissued again by Castle 1998 on their Essential label with slightly different cover)

March 1999 Page 13 of 43 Jeff Higgott

Grotesque (After The Gramme)

Rough Trade ROUGH18 November 1980 (LP)

Pay Your Rates

English Scheme

New Face in Hell

C'n'C-S Mithering

The Container Drivers

Impression of J. Temperance

In the Park

W.M.C.-Blob 59

Gramme Friday

The N.W.R.A.

(CD CLACD 391mastered from vinyl with same track listing released 8 November 1993 by Castle Communications. Re-released again by Cog Sinister cat? on 29 June 1998, this time specially mastered for CD and with new art work and the following additional tracks:)

How I Wrote Elastic Man

City Hobgoblin

Totally Wired

Putta Block

Grotesque

Slates etc

Rough Trade RT071 April 1981 (10" LP)

Middle Mass

An Older Lover etc.

Prole Art Threat

Fit and Working Again

Slates, Slags etc.

Leave the Capitol

(Later reissued with a slightly different sleeve)

(Reissued by DOJO records on CD only c/w A Part Of America in Dec 1992,

titled: Slates/A Part Of America Therein, 1981 (LOMA CD 10).))

77-Early Years-79

Step Forward SFLP6 September 1981 (LP)

Repetition

Bingo Masters Breakout

Psycho Mafia

Various Times

It's The New Thing

Rowche Rumble

In My Area

Dice Man

Psykick Dancehall No. 2

Second Dark Age

Fiery Jack

Reissued 27 March 2000 on Cog Sinster COGVP123CD with two additional tracks from the **Live At The Electric Circus** compilation:

Stepping out

Last orders

March 1999 Page 14 of 43 Jeff Higgott

Hex Enduction Hour

Kamera KAM005 March1982 (LP)

The Classical

Jawbone and the Air-Rifle

Hip Priest

Fortress/Deer Park

Mere Pseud Mag. Ed.

Winter (Hostel-Maxi)

Winter 2

Just Step S'ways

Who Makes the Nazis?

Iceland

And this Day

Reissued on LINE Records (FRG) on white vinyl and CD LICD 9.00126. Reissued 1999 on Cog Sinister COGVP119CD, with same tracklisting.

Room to Live (Undiluteable Slang Truth)

Kamera KAM011 October 1982 (LP)

Joker Hysterical Face

Marquis Cha Cha

Hard Life in Country

Room to Live

Detective Instinct

Solicitor in Studio

Papal Visit

Reissued on LINE Records (FRG) on black or white vinyl. This reissue also contains

Lie Dream of a Casino Soul

Fantastic Life

Reissued again by Cog Sinister (COGVP105CD) March 1998 (CD) with original track listing including four track bonus live disc **Special Limited Edition EP Pt 1** (COGVP105CD2), culled from the Derby Hall, Bury on April 27, 1982 (not Manchester Band On The Wall 1982 gig as the packaging indiactes). Limited run of 1000 (2000?) mastered from vinyl. Tracks on live CD:

Drago's Guilt

Joker Hysterical Face

Lie Dream of Casino Soul

Hexen Strife Knot

A Part Of America Therein, 1981

Cottage (US) LP1 May 1982 (LP)

The NWRA

Hip Priest

Totally Wired

Lie Dream of a Casino Soul

Cash 'n' Carry

An Older Lover

Deer Park

Winter

(Reissued by DOJO records on CD only c/w Slates, Dec 1992, titled: Slates/A Part Of America Therein, 1981 (LOMA CD 10))

March 1999 Page 15 of 43 Jeff Higgott

Perverted By Language

Rough Trade ROUGH62 December 1983 (LP)

Eat Y'self Fitter

Neighbourhood of Infinity

Garden

Hotel Bloedel

Smile

I Feel Voxish

Tempo House

Hexen Definitive/Strife Knot

(Reissued with same track listing by

LINE Records (FRG) on white vinyl and CD (LICD 9.00006)

Castle Communications on CD (CLACD 392) 8 November 1993

Cog Sinister on CD (COGVP104CD) 9 February 1998

Released again by Castle Communications ESMCD 639 29 June 1998 with the following

additional tracks:)

Man Whose Head Expanded

Ludd Gang

Kicker Conspiracy

Wings

Pilsner Trail

In a Hole

Flying Nun (NZ) MARK1/2 1983 (Live LP + 12")

Impression of J. Temperance

Man whose Head Expanded

Room to Live

Hip Priest

Lie Dream of a Casino Soul

Prole Art Threat

Hard Life in Country

The Classical

Mere Pseud Mag Ed

Marquis Cha-cha

Backdrop

Fantastic Life

English Scheme

Joker Hysterical Face

No Xmas for John Quays

Solicitor in Studio

(Reissued on Cog Sinister Records (COGVP102CD) May 1997)

March 1999 Page 16 of 43 Jeff Higgott

The Wonderful and Frightening World of...

Beggars Banquet BEGA58 October 1984 (LP)

Lay of the Land

2 by 4

Copped It

Elves

Slang King

Bug Day

Stephen Song

Craigness

Disney's Dream Debased

(plus on the CD version (BEGA 58 CD/BBL 58 CD) and the cassette Escape Route From The

Wonderful and Frightening World of The Fall (BEG C 58))

No Bulbs

Oh! Brother

Draygo's Guilt

God-Box

Clear Off

C.R.E.E.P.

Pat-trip Dispenser

Hip Priest and Kamerads

Situation Two SITU/SITL13 March 1985 (LP)

Lie Dream of a Casino Soul

The Classical

Fortress

Look Know

Hip Priest

Room to Live

Mere Pseud Mag. Ed.

Hard Life In Country

I'm Into CB

Fantastic Life

(Cassette version (SITL13) and CD version (SITL13CD) feature live versions of)

Who Makes the Nazis?

Just Step Sideways

Jawbone and the Air-Rifle

And This Day

March 1999 Page 17 of 43 Jeff Higgott

This Nation's Saving Grace

Beggars Banquet BEGA67 September 1985 (LP)

Mansion

Bombast

Barmy

What You Need

Spoilt Victorian Child

L.A.

Gut of the Quantifier

My New House

Paint Work

I am Damo Suzuki

To Nkroachment: Yarbles

(Cassette BEGC67 also includes)

Vixen

Couldn't Get Ahead

Petty (Thief) Lout

(Additional to these, the CD version BEG67CD/BBL67CD features)

Rollin' Dany

Cruisers Creek

Nord-West Gas

Funf Und Vierzig (FRG) LP08 1986 (LP)

My New House

Bombast

Disney's Dream Debased

Couldn't Get Ahead

No Bulbs

Paintwork

C.R.E.E.P.

I am Damo Suzuki

Rollin' Dany

L.A.

Barmy

Lay of the Land

Bend Sinister

Beggars Banquet BEGA75 October 1986 (LP)

R.O.D.

Dktr. Faustus

Shoulder Pads 1#

Mr Pharmacist

Gross Chapel - British Grenadiers

U.S. 80's-90's

Terry Waite Sez

Bournemouth Runner

Riddler!

Shoulder Pads 2#

(CD version BEGA75CD also contains)

Living too Late

Auto-Tech Pilot

(Additional to these, the cassette version BEGC75 features)

Town and Country Hobgoblins

March 1999 Page 18 of 43 Jeff Higgott

in: Palace of Swords Reversed

Cog Sinister COG1 Dcember 1987 (LP)

Prole Art Threat

How I Wrote 'Elastic Man'

Totally Wired

Pay Your Rates

Putta Block

An older Lover

Fit and Working Again

Marquis Cha-Cha

The Man Whose Head Expanded

Neighbourhood of Infinity (live)

Kicker Conspiracy

Wings

(plus on CD (CDCOG1) and cassette (COGC1))

City Hobgoblins

Leave the Capitol

Reissued by Cog Sinister (COGVP107CD) 20 February 1998 (CD) with original CD track listing including four track bonus live disc **Special Limited Edition EP Pt 2**, with live tracks culled from the Derby Hall, Bury (April 27, 1982) (Manchester Band On The Wall gig in 1982 as the packaging indicates). Limited run of 1000 (2000?).

Tracks on live CD:

Look Know

Tempo House

I'm into CB

Mere Pseud Mag Editor

The Frenz Experiment

Beggars Banquet BEGA91 29 February 1988 (LP)

Frenz

Carry Bag Man

Get a Hotel

Victoria

Athlete Cured

In these Times

The Steak Place

Bremen Nacht

Guest Informant (excerpt)

Oswald Defence Lawyer

(Cassette BEGAC91 (which has Bremen Nacht Run Out instead of Bremen Nacht) and CD BEGA91CD (which has Bremen Nacht Alternative instead of Bremen Nacht) also contain)

Guest Informant

Tuff Life Booogie

Twister

(CD also has)

There's a Ghost in my House

Hit The North part 1

March 1999 Page 19 of 43 Jeff Higgott

Iam Kurious, Oranj

Beggars Banquet BEGA96 October 1988 (LP)

New Big Prinz

Overture from 'I am Curious Orange'

Dog is Life/Jerusalem

Kurious Oranj

Wrong Place, Right Time

C.D. Win fall 2088 AD

Yes, O Yes

Van Plague?

Bad News Girl

Cab It Up!

(plus on CD (BEGA96CD) and cassette (BEGA96C))

Guide Me Soft

Last Nacht

Big New Priest

Seminal Live

Beggars Banquet BBL102 1989 (LP)

Dead Beat Descendant

Pinball Machine

H.O.W.

Squid Law

Mollusc In Tyrol

2 By 4

Elf Prefix / L.A.

Victoria

Pay Your Rates

Introduction / Cruisers Creek

(plus on CD (BBL 102 CD))

Kurious Oranj

Frenz

Hit the North

In These Times

(All but the first five listed tracks are live recordings)

March 1999 Page 20 of 43 Jeff Higgott

Extricate

Cog Sinister 842.204-1 19 Feb 1990 (LP)

Sing! Harpy

I'm Frank

Bill is Dead

Black Monk Theme Part I

Popcorn Double Feature

Telephone Thing

Hilary

Chicago, Now!

The Littlest Rebel

And Therein...

(plus on CD (842 204-2) and cassette (842 204-4))

Arms Control Poseur

Black Monk Theme Part II

British People in Hot Weather

Extricate

Extricate (Album Sampler) (FALL 1) contains the tracks:

I'm Frank

Telephone Thing

Bill is Dead

Sing! Harpy

Re-released on Cog Sinister COGVP122CD 30 April 1999 with same track listing.

458489 A Sides

Beggars Banquet BEGA111 1990 (LP)

Oh! Brother

C.R.E.E.P.

No Bulbs 3

Rollin' Dany

Couldn't Get Ahead

Cruisers Creek

L.A.

Living Too Late

Hit The North part 1

Mr. Pharmacist

Hey! Luciani

There's a Ghost in my House

Victoria

Big New Prinz

Wrong Place Right Time no. 2

Jerusalem

Dead Beat Descendant

(also on cassette (BEGC111) and CD (BEGA111CD))

March 1999 Page 21 of 43 Jeff Higgott

458489 B Sides

Beggars Banquet BEGA116 31 December 1990 (Double LP)

God Box

Pat-trip Dispenser

Slang King 2

Draygo's Guilt

Clear Off!

No Bulbs

Petty Thief Lout

Vixen

Hot Aftershave Bop

Living Too Long

Lucifer Over Lancashire

Auto Tech Pilot

Entitled

Shoulder Pads #1B

Sleep Debt Snatches

Mark'll Sink Us

Haf Found Bormann

Northerns in Europ

Hit the North part 2

Guest Informant

Tuff Life Boogie

Twister

Acid Priest 2088

Cab it Up!

(cassette (BEGC116) also contains)

Australians in Europe

(also on double CD (BEGA116CD)....)

O! Brother (12)

C.R.E.E.P. (12) [actually c.r.e.e.p.]

Bremen Nacht Run Out

Mark'll Sink Us [another version]

Kurious Oranj (live)

Hit the North (live)

Shift-Work

Cog Sinister/Fontana 848.594-1 April 1991 (LP)

So What About It?

Idiot Joy Showland

Edinburgh Man

Pittsville Direkt

The Book of Lies

The War Against Intelligence

Shift-work

You Haven't Found It Yet

The Mixer

A Lot of Wind

Rose

Sinister Waltz

(cassette (848 594-4) and CD (848 594-2) also contain...)

High Tension Line

White Lightning

March 1999 Page 22 of 43 Jeff Higgott

Code: Selfish

Cog Sinister/Fontana 512.162-1 March 1992 (LP)

The Birmingham School of Business School

Free Range

Return

Time Enough at Last

Everything Hurtz

Immortality

Two-Face!

Just Waiting

So-Called Dangerous

Gentlemen's Agreement

Married, 2 Kids

Crew Filth

(Also available with same track listing on CD (512 162-2) and cassette (512 162-4))

The Collection

Castle CCSCD365 March 1993 (CD)

Intro

Fiery Jack

Muzorewi's Daughter

Choc-Stock

Cary Grant's Wedding

Middle Mass

Slates, Slags etc.

Leave the Capitol

Container Drivers

Impression of J. Temperance

W.M.C.-Blob 59

City Hobgoblins

Totally Wired

How I Wrote 'Elastic Man'

Hip Priest

The N.W.R.A.

Smile

Medical Acceptance Gate

A Day in the Life

(Also available on cassette CCSMC365)

The Infotainment Scan

Permanent/Cog Sinister PERMLP12 26 April 1993 (LP)

Ladybird (Green Grass)

Lost in Music

Glam-Racket

I'm Going To Spain

It's a Curse

Paranoia Man in Cheap Sh*t Room

Service

The League Of Bald-Headed Men

A Past Gone Mad

Light/Fireworks

(Also available with same track listing on cassette PERMMC12, and on CD PERMCD12 with the following additional tracks)

Why Are People Grudgeful?

League Moon Monkey Mix

March 1999 Page 23 of 43 Jeff Higgott

BBC Radio 1 'Live In Concert'

Windsong International WINCD038 2 August 1993 (Live CD)

Australians In Europe

Shoulder Pads

Ghost In My House

Hey Luciani

Terry Waite Sez

Fiery Jack

Lucifer Over Lancs

(Recorded 25 May 1987 at The Rock City, Nottingham)

Middle Class Revolt

Cog Sinister/Permanent PERMLP16 3 May 1994 (LP)

15 Ways

The Reckoning

Behind The Counter

M5#1

Surmount All Obstacles

Middle Class Revolt!

War

You're Not Up To Much

Symbol Of Mordgan

Hey! Student

Junk Man

The \$500 Bottle Of Wine

City Dweller

Shut Up!

(Also available with same track listing on cassette PERMMC16 and CD PERMCD16)

Cerebral Caustic

Cog Sinister/Permanent PERMLP30 27 February 1995 (LP)

The Joke

Don't Call Me Darling

Rainmaster

Feeling Numb

Pearl City

Life Just Bounces

I'm Not Satisfied

The Aphid

Bonkers In Phoenix

One Day

North West Fashion Show

Pine Leaves

(Also available with same track listing on cassette PERMMC30 and CD PERMCD30)

March 1999 Page 24 of 43 Jeff Higgott

The Twenty Seven Points

Cog Sinister/Permanent PERMLP36 7 August 1995 (Live double LP)

Mollusc In Tyrol

Return

Ladybird (Green Grass)

Idiot - Walk Out

Ten Points

Idiot Joy Showland

Big New Prinz

Intro - Roadhouse

The Joke

M.H.'s Jokes/British People In Hot Weather

Free Range

Hi-Tension Line

The League Of Bald-headed Men

95: Glam Racket/Star

Lost In Music

Prague '91/Mr. Pharmacist

Cloud Of Black

Paranoid Man in Cheap Sh..t Room

Bounces - Leeds

Outro

Passable

Glasgow Advice

Middle Class Revolt - Simon, Dave & John

Bill Is Dead

Strychnine

War!

Noel's Chemical Effluence

Three Points/UpToo Much

(Also available with same track listing on double CD PERMCD36)

The Legendary Chaos Tape

Scout Releases/Rough Trade SAR1005 1996 (CD)

Middle Mass/Crap Rap

English Scheme

New Face In Hell

That Man

An Older Lover

Male Slags

Prole Art Threat

Container Drivers

Jawbone + The Air Rifle

In The Park

Leave The Capital

Spectre Versus Rector

Pay Your Rates

Impression Of J. Temperance

(Recorded at the Acklam Hall (now Subterranea), London 11 December 1980. Initially released in 1980 as a bootleg tape "Live in London, 1980" by Chaos Tapes (LIVE006) with same tracks but differing titles.)

March 1999 Page 25 of 43 Jeff Higgott

Sinister Waltz

Receiver Records RRCD 209 22 January 1996 (CD)

A Lot Of Wind

Couldn't Get Ahead

Blood Outta Stone

Arid Al's Dream

The Knight, The Devil and Death

Chicago, Now!

Birthday

Pumpkin Head Escscapes

Wings

Dr Faustus

Telephone Thing

Black Monk Theme (alternative mix)

Gut Of The Quantifier

Edinburgh Man

(First in a series of three CDs Featuring alternative previously unreleased versions.)

Fiend With a Violin

Receiver Records RRCD 211 19 February 1996 (CD)

I Feel Voxish

The Man Whose Head Expanded

What You Need

LA

Petty Thief Lout

Fiend with a Violin

Spoilt Victorian Child

Bombast

Married, Two Kids

Haven't Found It Yet

Gentleman's Agreement

Fiend with a Violin (vox)

(Second in a series of three CDs Featuring alternative previously unreleased/live versions. "Fiend with a Violin" is actually "2 By 4")

Oswald Defence Lawyer

Receiver Records RRCD 213 15 April 1996 (CD)

Just Waiting

Oswald Defence Lawyer

Victoria

Frenz

2x4

Bad News Girl

Get a Hotel

Guest Informant

Big New Prinz

Bremen Nacht

Carry Bag Man

Bombast

(Third in a series of three CDs featuring alternative previously unreleased/live versions)

March 1999 Page 26 of 43 Jeff Higgott

The Other Side Of The Fall

Receiver Records 1997 (Triple CD)

Boxed set comprising the three albums:

Sinister Waltz Receiver Records RRCD 209

Fiend With a Violin Receiver Records RRCD 211

Oswald Defence Lawyer Receiver Records RRCD 213

The Light User Syndrome

Jet Records JETCD 1012 10 June 1996 (CD)

D.I.Y. Meat

Das Vulture Ans Ein Nutter-Wain

He Pep!

Hostile

Stay Away (Old White Train)

Spinetrak

Interlude/Chilinism

Powder Keg

Oleano

Cheetham Hill

The Coliseum

Last Chance To Turn Around

The Ballad Of J. Drummer

Oxymoron

Secession Man

Also available with same track listing on vinyl JETLP1012 and cassette JETMC1012. Re-released on Receiver Records RRCD264Z early 1999 with additional tracks from the single:

Chiselers

Chilinist

The Fall In The City....

Artful Records ARTFULCD3 27 January 1997 (live CD)

The Joke

Aphid

Deadbeat

Feeling Numb

War

Glam Racket

Pearl City

LA

Don't Call Me Darling

Bill is Dead

Behind the Counter

Edinburgh Man

Middle Class Revolt

Gut of the Quantifier

Life Just Bounces

(Recorded live at the Roadhouse, Manchester 1995)

March 1999 Page 27 of 43 Jeff Higgott

ine i un Discography

Archive Series - The Fall

Rialto Records RMCD214 May 1997 (CD)

I Feel Voxish

Guest Informant

Arid Al's Dream

Bad News Girl

Fiend With a Violin (vox)

Edinburgh Man

Get a Hotel

Blood Outta Stone

Carry Bag Man

Gut of the Quantifier

Man Whose Head Expanded

Pumpkin Head Escapes

Oswald Defence Lawyer

DKTR Faustus

Just Waiting

(CD features a selection from the albums Sinister Waltz, Fiend With a Violin, Oswald Defence Lawyer)

March 1999 Page 28 of 43 Jeff Higgott

The More You Seek The Less You Find

Receiver Records 1997 (Double CD)

Edinburgh Man

Couldn't Get Ahead

Blood Outta Stone

The Knight The Devil And Death

Arid Al's Dream

Birthday

Telephone Thing

Black Monk Theme

Gut Of The Quantifier

Wings

I Feel Voxish

The Man Whose Head Expanded

What You Need

Bombast (live version)

Married, Two Kids

Hostile

plus

L.A.

Petty Thief Lout

Oswald Defence Lawyer

You Haven't Found It Yet

Gentleman's Agreement

A Lot Of Wind

Just Waiting

Victoria

2x4

Bad News Girl

Get A Hotel

Guest Informant

Big New Prinz

Carry Bag Man

Bombast (alternative version)

Oxymoron

(CD features a further selection from the albums Sinister Waltz, Fiend With a Violin, Oswald Defence Lawyer and a few additional tracks. Note the release is titled The Less You Seek The More You Find elsewhere on the cover)

March 1999 Page 29 of 43 Jeff Higgott

15 Ways To Leave Your Man

Receiver RRCD239 11 August 1997 (live CD)

Chilinist

Don't Call Me Darling

15 Ways (To Leave Your Man)

D.I.Y. Meat

Pearl City

Feeling Numb

L.A.

Big New Prinz

Mr. Pharmacist

Everything Hurtz

The Mixer

Das Vulture Ans Ein Nutter-Wain

M5 6-7PM

Return

The Reckoning

Hey Student

(Recorded live in London 1996)

Levitate

Artful CDX9 29 September 1997 (LP/CD 1997)

Ten Houses Of Eve

Masquerade

Hurricane Edward

I'm A Mummy

The Quartet Of Doc Shanley

Jap Kid

4 1/2 Inch

Spencer Must Die

Jungle Rock

Ol' Gang

Tragic Days

I Come And Stand At Your Door

Levitate

Everybody But Myself

(Limited edition with additional CD containing....)

Powderkex

Christmastide

Recipe For Fascism

Pilsner Trail

Everybody But Myself (live)

March 1999 Page 30 of 43 Jeff Higgott

Oxymoron

Receiver RRCD246 November 1997 (CD)

Oxymoron

Powder Keg

White Lines

Pearl City

Birmingham School Of Business School

Hostile

Glam Racket

Italiano

He Pep!

Rainmaster

Behind The Counter

Bill Is Dead

E.S.P. Disco

Interlude/Chilinism

Life Just Bounces

Cheetham Hill

Receiver RRCD247 November 1997

Time Enough At Last

Cheetham Hill

Free Range

The Chiselers

Us 80's-90's

Spine Track

Idiot Joy Showland

Oleano

The Joke

Ed's Babe

Hit The North

White Lighting

Seccession Man

Last Exit to Brooklyn (Last Chance To Turn Around)

The Coliseum

Eat Yourself Fitter

Yet another non-essential Receiver compilation

Smile...It's The Best Of

Castle CCSCD823 March 1998 (CD)

Smile

An Older Lover Etc.

Rowche Rumble

D.I.Y. Meat

Totally Wired

New Face In Hell

Prole Art Threat

New Puritan

Tempo House

Pay Your Rates

He Pep!

Spectre vs. Rector

Oxymoron

Lie Dream Of A Casino Soul

Impression of J. Temperance

No Xmas For John Quays

That Man

March 1999 Page 31 of 43 Jeff Higgott

1ne Tuu Discography issue 7.3

(Another non-essential compilation cobbled together from Grotesque, Slates/A Part of America Therein, Totale's Turns, Perverted by Language and Light User Syndrome.)

Live To Air In Melbourne '82

Cog Sinister COGVP108CD 4 May1998(CD)

I Feel Voxish

Tempo House

Hard Life In Country

I'm Into C.B.

Lie Dream Of A Casino Soul

Solicitor In Studio

Marquis Cha-Cha

Recorded at Prince of Wales Hotel, Melbourne on 2 August 1982. Only the first 1000 copies were supposed to include a second CD with the final three tracks (the encore), but the gig is split evenly over both CDs (despite what's written on the packaging). All released copies seem to have both CD's. Second CD tracks:

Room To Live

Hexen Definitive

Deer Park

Totally Wired

Joker Hysterical Face

Hip Priest

Northern Attitude

Music Club MCCD350 June 1998 (CD)

Telephone Thing

Das Vulture Ans Ein Nutter-Wain

Oxymoron

M5 6-7PM

Powder Keg

Victoria

Edinburgh Man

Oswald Defence Lawyer

I Feel Voxish

L.A.

Guest Informant

E.S.P. Disco

Mr Pharmacist

Italiano

Fiend With a Violin

Bremen Nacht

The Man Whose Head Expanded

Rombast

 $(Another\ non-essential\ selection\ of\ 18\ tracks\ licensed\ from\ Trojan\ records, featuring\ tracks\ from\ tr$

Fiend With A Violin, E.S.P. Disco, etc)

March 1999 Page 32 of 43 Jeff Higgott

The Post Nearly Man

Artful CD14 6 September 1998 (CD)

The Horror in Clay

Shad Segment

The Caterer

I'm Bobby pt 1

The CD in Your Hand

Enigrammatic Dream

Visit of an American Poet v 1

Segment

Visitation of an American Poet

Visit of an American Poet v 2

I'm Bobby pt 2

Typewriter

Dissolute Singer

A Lot in a Name

(Album credited to "Mark E. Smith" rather than The Fall. Spoken word CD features Mark E. Smith's self-penned short stories, lyrics, poetry, keyboard and sound effects).

Live Various Years

Cog Sinister COGVP111CD 22 September 1998 (live double CD)

Deadbeat Descendant

Big New Prinz

Grudgefull

Free Range

Shiftwork

Strychnine

Das Vulture

Spine Track

Behind the Counter

Interferance

Hip Priest

Interferance (reprise)

Tracks 1,2 NYC 93; 3-6 Munich 93; 7-12 Bristol 97. Also comes with bonus live CD titled **16.04.88** (no location given but probably from the Fritz Club, Vienna, April 15 1988):

Carry A Bag Man

Yes Oh Yes

Us 80's 90's

Nottingham '92

Cog Sinister COGVP110CD 1998 (live CD)

Time Enough At Last

Blood Outta Stone

Idiot Joy Showland

Free Range

Immortality

High Tension Line

Married, 2 Kids

New Big Prinz

Pittsville Direkt

Return

Everything Hurtz

Birmingham School Of Business School

Edinburgh Man

And Therein...

The War Against Intelligence

(Recorded live at Trent Polytechnic, Nottingham March 15, 1992.)

March 1999 Page 33 of 43 Jeff Higgott

The Peel Sessions

Strange Fruit SFRSCD048 25 January 1998 (CD)

Rebellious Jukebox

Mess of My

New Face In Hell

Winter

Smile

Middlemass

2 X 4

Cruisers Creek

What You Need

Athlete Cured

Dead Beat Descendant

Black Monk Theme

Idiot Joy Showland

Free Range

Strychnine

A Past Gone Mad

M5

The Marshall Suite

Artful ARTFULCD17 19 April 1999 (CD)

Touch Sensitive

F-'oldin' Money

Shake-off

Bound

This Perfect Day

(Jung Nev's) Antidotes

Inevitable

Anecdotes + Antidotes In B#

Early Life Of Crying Marshal

The Crying Marshal

Birthday Song

Mad.Men-Eng.Dog

On My Own

Also available on MC (ARTFULMC17) with same track list, and limited edition vinyl double album (ARTFULLP17) which features an extra track:

Finale: Tom Raggazzi

March 1999 Page 34 of 43 Jeff Higgott

A Past Gone Mad

Artful ARTFULCD30 28 February 2000 (CD)

The CD In Your Hand

Touch Sensitive

High Tension Line

Rose

The Birmingham School Of Business

Free Range

Lost In Music

I'm Going To Spain

It's A Cursel

A Past Gone Mad

Behind The Counter

Hey Student!

Ten Houses Of Eve

F-'oldin' Money

Shake Off

Jung Ney's Antidotes

Bonkers In Pheonix

Bill Is Dead

Non-essential compilation of album tracks.

Live 1977

Cog Sinister COGVP114CD 27 March 2000 (CD)

Psycho Mafia

Last Orders

Repetition

Dresden Dolls

Hey Fascist

Frightened

Industrial Estate

Stepping Out

Bingo Master's Breakout

Oh Brother

Cop It

Futures and Pasts

Louie Louie

March 1999 Page 35 of 43 Jeff Higgott

3. MISCELLANEOUS

Short Circuit - Live at the Electric Circus

Virgin VCL5003 June 1978 (10" live LP on blue, orange or black vinyl)

features

Stepping Out

Last Orders

(Reissued in 1988, CD only (CDVCL5003))

Live in London 1980

Chaos Tapes LIVE006 (Live MC 4000 copies only)

Middle Mass

English Scheme

New Face In Hell

That Man

Older Lover

Slates

Gramme Friday

Container Drivers

Jawbone And The Air Rifle

In The Park

Leave The Capitol

Spectre Vs. Rector

Pay Your Rates

Impression Of J. Temperance

(Recorded at the Acklam Hall (now Subterranea), London on 11 August 1980. Reissued in early 1996, CD only - see p24)

Dresden Dolls/Psycho Mafia/Industrial Estate

Total Eclipse DRD1 (bootleg 7")

(First 50 came with black on red insert)

Indie City

NME NMEPRO8 (promotional LP limited to 500)

features

Rowche Rumble

Speed Trials

Homestead (US) HMS011 1984 (LP)

features live versions of

Smile

Tempo House

One Pound Ninety-Nine - A Music Sampler Of The State Of Things

Beggars Banquet/Situation Two BBB1 1985 (LP)

features

Spoilt Victorian Child

Fruitcakes and Furry Collars

(LP, mail order only from Record Mirror, 1986)

features

L.A. (live at Albany Empire, Deptford)

NME's POGO A GOGO

NME NME021 1986 (MC)

features

Bingo Master's Breakout

March 1999 Page 36 of 43 Jeff Higgott

Vinyl Conflict 2

Melody Maker Sep 1986 (7" EP given away free with "Melody Maker") features

Lucifer Over Lancashire (alternative)

Mixed Peel - The John Peel Sessions

Strange Fruit NME033 1987 (MC given away free with "NME") features
Put Away

Sounds Showcase 1

Sounds SHOW 1 28 February 1987 (7" EP given away free with "Sounds") features Hey! Luciani (original)

Bugs on the Wire

Leghorn SAW399 1987 (LP) features Wings (live)

Head Over Ears - A Debris compilation

Play Hard DEC7 December 1987 (includes a copy of DEBRIS magazine) features
US 80's - 90's (live)

Sgt. Pepper Knew my Father

Youth NMEDEPLP100 1988 (LP) features
A Day in the Life

Coldcut What's That Noise

Ahead Of Our Time CCUT LP1 April 1989 (LP) contains track featuring Mark Smith on vocals (I'm) In Deep

Sniffin Rock No 9 magazine June 1989 has a free EP (SR006A7)

Guest Informant (live in Vienna)

The Adult Net White Night single (Beggars Banquet) has Naughty but Nice on the B-side with some vocals from MES

Home

Sheer Joy SHEER001 1990 (LP) features a track by Mark Smith, M. Beddington, S. Hanley, S. Wolstencroft Theme from ERROR-ORROR!

Winters of Discontent - The Peel Sessions

Strange Fruit 1991 (CD) features Mess of My

The Indie Scene 1978

IBM IBMCD78 1992 (CD) features

jeuures --

Bingo Masters Breakout

March 1999 Page 37 of 43 Jeff Higgott

ine i un discography

The Indie Scene 1979

IBM IBMCD79 1992 (CD)

features

Rowche Rumble

The Indie Scene 1980

IBM IBMCD80 1992 (CD)

features

Totally Wired

The Indie Scene 1983

IBM IBMCD83 1992 (CD)

features

Kicker Conspiracy

The Indie Scene 1985

IBM IBMCD85 1992 (CD)

features

Cruisers Creek

Manchester So Much To Answer For

(CD)

features

Eat Y'self Fitter

Radio Daze - The John Peel Sessions

Vox/Strange Fruit GIVIT3 April 1992 (MC given away free with Vox magazine)

features

Return

Volume Four

World's End V4CD 1992 (CD)

features

Arid Al's Dream

Volume Eight

World's End V8CD 1993 (CD)

Various artists CD features

War

Ruby Trax

Forty NME40CD 1992 (Triple CD)

features

Legend of Xanadu

Young At Heart - A Kick Up The 80s Volume 7

Old Gold OG3626 1992 (LP)

Features

There's a Ghost In My House

Angels With Dirty Faces - The History Of Punk Vol 3

Old Gold OG3306 1992 (CD)

features

Totally Wired

March 1999 Page 38 of 43 Jeff Higgott

NME Singles of the week 1992

RCA/BMG NMERCACD1 1993 (CD)

features

Free Range

RCD Classic Rock Collection Vol 10

(CD accompanying Rock CD magazine Vol1 No 10 June 1993)

features

A Past Gone Mad

RCD Classic Rock Collection Vol 15

(CD accompanying Rock CD magazine Vol1 No 15 September 1993)

features

There's A Ghost In My House

In Session Tonight

Strange Fruit BOOKCD 1 1993 (CD accompanying BBC Radio 1 sessionography book)

features

Kimble

Independent Top 20

Beechwood Music TT017CD 1993

features

Why Are People Grudgeful?

Inspiral Carpets I Want You

Mute DUNG 24 CD (CD) / DUNG 24 CDR (CD) also on 7" and MC 21 Feb 1994

Features Mark E Smith on vocals

The Nineties Collection Chapter II - The Rebirth

Fontana 515 905-2 1993

Compilation double CD includes

Telephone Thing

White Lightning

Bend It! 94

Exotica Records PELE8CD 1994 (CD)

Features MES dialogue from his Goal TV appearance.

C.R.E.E.P. SHOW

Schlick Yarbles Revisited F101 1984 (Bootleg LP)

Lay Of The Land

Ludd Gang

Kicker Conspiracy

Smile

2 By 4

C.R.E.E.P

Neighbourhood Of Infinity

Copped It

Garden

(Recorded live in Munich 4 April 1986. Limited to 200 copies)

March 1999 Page 39 of 43 Jeff Higgott

THE TAIL DISCOGRAPHY ISSUE 1.3

Backdrop

Pseudo Indie Label PIL05CD 1994 (Bootleg CD)

Marquis Cha-Cha (Kamera 7" version)

Bremen Nacht Run Out (Free 7" with Frenz Experiment)

Mark'll Sink Us (live) (Free 7" with Frenz Experiment)

Lucifer over Lancashire (Melody Maker free "Vinyl Conflict" EP version, 1986)

Hey! Luciani (Sounds "Sounds Showcase 1" EP, 1987)

Wings (live in NYC '85, from "Bugs on the Wire" LP, 1987)

L.A. (live at Albany Empire, Deptford. From "Fruitcakes and Furry Collars" LP, mail order only from Record Mirror, 1986)

U.S. 80's-90's (live in Bremen, Germany from "Head over Ears" LP, 1987)

Guest Informant (live in Vienna, from 7" EP with issue 9 of Sniffin' Rock, 1989)

The Man Whose Head Expanded (live, from Bang Zoom tapezine no. 7, 1986)

Backdrop (from "Fall in a Hole")

Dresden Dolls ("unreleased" rehearsal, '77 (Total Eclipse DRD1))

Strychnine (from BBC Radio 1 Peel Session)

Race with the Devil (Gene Vincent song played as a request for John Peel at his 50th birthday party, Subterranea, London, August 29th 1989)

Plaster on the Hands (live at the Venue, London on 21st March 1983)

Uncredited piece of MES talking about the release of How I Wrote Elastic Man/City Hobgoblins

Sharks Patrol These Waters - The Best of Volume Two

BOVCD2 1995 (CD)

Various artists CD features

Arid Al's Dream

D.O.S.E Featuring Mark E. Smith Plug Myself In

Coliseum Records/PWL TOGA001CD1 (CD) / TOGA001CD2 (CD) 1996

Disc 1: THE SPOONFUL OF SUGAR MIXES

7" Nero Mix

12" Caligula Mix

12" Pointblanc Intensive Care Mix

Missing Link Symphonic Instrumental

Missing Link Dirty Instrumental

John Berry - DOA Mix

Disc 2: THE ST LUKE MIXES

7" Nero Mix

Disco Hospital Casulaty Mix

Dodo Bassburger Escariot Mix

Missing Link Symphonic Mix

3 Over 3 Out Patients Mix

Monty's Full Up Pompeii Mix

Two CD single set (disks available separately) feature MES on vocals

Tackhead Dangerous Sex

SBK7014

B-side of single, Repetition, features MES on vocals

Long Fin Killie Heads Of Dead Surfers

Single features MES on vocals

Compilation LP The Disparate Cogscienti features Mark Smith at the beginning of side 2.

A History of Punk Volume 2

Virgin CDOVD487 1997 (CD)

features

Cruisers Creek

March 1999 Page 40 of 43 Jeff Higgott

A History of Punk

Receiver RDPCD11 1997 (2CD) features A Lot Of Wind

INCH feat. Mark E. Smith Inch

Regal REG27CD February1999 (CD)
Single features MES on vocals. Also available on 12" REG27.

Elastica

Deceptive 23 August 1999 Six track EP features MES on How He Wrote Elastica Man KB

You Can't Keep a Good Man Down The Clint Boon Experience

August 1999 (CD/7") Single features MES on the B-side Now I Wanna Be Your Dog

Also:

Cruiser's Creek/Couldn't Get Ahead/Barmy/Vixen/Petty (Thief) Lout PVC PVC5909 1985 (Widely available US import 12")

Totally Wired
Razor and Tie 1999 (CD)
US compilation CD features
Totally Wired

March 1999 Page 41 of 43 Jeff Higgott

ine i un discography

4. VIDEOS

Perverted by Language Bis

Ikon Videos IKON8 January 1983

Wings

Totally Wired

Kicker Conspiracy

Hexen Definitive - Strife Knot

Eat Y'self Fitter

Tempo House

The Man Whose Head Expanded

Smile

Draygo's Guilt - Hip Priest (excerpts)

Container Drivers

VHS8489

Beggars Banquet BB010 August 1990

Wrong Place, Right Time

Hit the North

Big New Prinz

Mr. Pharmacist

Lucifer over Lancashire (edit)

Hey! Luciani

There's a Ghost in my House

Couldn't Get Ahead

Victoria

Cruisers Creek

Guest Informant (edit)

Shift-Work and Holidays

Phonogram 083.590-3 June 1990

So What About It?

The Mixer

Error-Orrori

High Tension Line

Pearson's Revenge

The Book of Lies

Big New Priest

Shift-Work

Snub TV Vol 1

EMI MVP9912133 1990

compilation video features

Deadbeat Descendents

Snub TV Vol 2

Virgin VVD837 1991 compilation video features Bill is Dead

March 1999 Page 42 of 43 Jeff Higgott

The Tun Discography Issue 1.5

March 1999 Page 43 of 43 Jeff Higgott

ine i un Discography

5. BOOKS

Edge, Brian. (1989). Paintwork - A portrait of The Fall. Omnibus Press.

Smith, Mark. E. (1985). The Fall Lyrics. Lough Press, Berlin.

Garner, Ken. (1993). In Session Tonight. BBC Books. ISBN 0-536-36452-1 Details all BBC Radio 1 sessions to 1992 and comes with complementary CD (Strange Fruit BOOKCD1) featuring Kimble as the last track.

March 1999 Page 44 of 43 Jeff Higgott